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Employment 
employment as a result of the injuries caused to me as a result of the sexual 
harassment and assault . 
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The City continues to pretend that I have not madease xual harassment and assault complaint . Instead of 
providing the City's position, which it hasn't been clear, I will explain the City's actions in response to my 
complaint . Despite being notified of Steve Seroka's sexual harassment and assault inflicted on me, the City not 
only failed to complete a timely investigation (or conduct one at all) of my HR complaint concerning Mr. Seroka. 



but the City failed to accommodate my serious health con-dition and disability arising out of the phys1i::al and 
mental trauma caused by Mr . Seroka and the City despite having been provided letters from two of my health 
care providers . Instead of providing my attorney's office with a medical release form so that the City could 
speak directly with my doctor about his diagnos is and treatment plan as it relates to my inability to return to 
work, the City inexplicably demanded five years of medical records without any supporting legal authority or 
·ustification . Instead of conducting a CONFIDENTIAL and TIMELY investigation, the City harassed and int imidated 
me by making unreasonable demands, rather than responding to me with empathy and understanding about 
what I had been suffering through and further failed to make reasonable accommodations . Rather than work 
toward an amicable resolution with me, the City continued to demand that I return to work without any plan for 
accommodating my condition . To punish me for not capitulating to the City's demands, the City Attorney 
directed the City to stop paying me, and cut off my benefits AGAIN without the conclusion of an investigation 
into the allegations , the City attorney interfered with my access to short term disability benefits , the City 
Attorney refused to address whether I was still employed, and refused to provide a time and place for me to 
pick up my belongings and final paycheck with payment for all of my accrued PTO until this last week . All of the 
City Attorney's letters and related actions amount to my constructive discharge in retaliation for me 
complaining about having been sexually harassed and assaulted. Additionally, a person working in Human 
Resources at the City released to the Press my picture and name which has been shared within our community 
so much that I must leave the State of Nevada to escape the torment and embarrassment the City has caused 
by the negligent manner in which the City has handled (or lack thereof) th is complaint . 
3) I believe I was treated this way because: ~-- c-----The City did not want to accept responsibility for the actions of Mr. Seroka. Instead of accommodating me the 
City has completely ignored the entire situation, believing it will eventually just go away; 1) The City is 
vicariously liable for the unlawful acts of former City Councilman Seroka; 2) The City failed to complete a t imely 
investigation; 3) The City failed to train and supervise Mr. Seroka with regard to sexual harassment; 4) The City 
failed to accommodate my reasonable request to remain on paid administrative leave until the conclusion of 
the investigation and until the implementation of a reasonable plan to ensure my health and well-being were 
protected ; 5) The City retaliated against me for making the human resources complaint and retaliated against 
me for desiring that the investigation be completed before considering the plan for me to return to work, which 
in fact , operates as a constructive discharge; 6) The City failed to keep the investigation, and particularly my 
name confidential, and further leaked said information to the press which has caused my family and I great 
harm and distress. 
4) Explain the alleged discriminatory event(s) that you have marked in Section E. Please include who did what , 
who was there , what happened, when it happened, where it happened, what was said, etc . Please be as brief as 
possible. 
On August 27, 2018, I was hired as a "Special Assistant" to Councilman Seroka' s Office . Seroka created this job 
specifically for me. My job duties consisted of: primary liaison for all military outreach employment programs 
and partnerships within the greater Las Vegas Area; Responsible for building and maintaining relationships with 
the businesses and 175,000 residents of Ward 2 for all customer service related inquiries and projects; Social 
media and newsletter manager for all the Councilman's events and actionable news. Also, serve as the 
community representative at various city events on behalf of the city ; Serve as a workforce development board 
member for the healthcare and military spouse programs across the city as well as other industry sectors; Plan 
and execute all Ward 2 employment and employer events and meetings within the city and state. I loved this 
·ob. It fit right into my love and compassion to help United States Veterans of the armed services. Prior to this, I 
worked extensively with veterans and veteran affairs groups for over a decade to assist them in a host of 
different ways. All during this time, I developed meaningful contacts within the veterans' affairs community. 
Also, along the way, I met the Councilman who , at the time, was stationed at Nellis Air Force Base. I also worked 
on the base for my job . I was excellent at my job. While I did not know it at the time, it was then that Seroka 
began to groom me for his bad predatory intentions . Seroka befriended me, and sought my support during his 
City councilman campaign, he had me volunteer for his staff work, and eventually offered me a job on his staff 
in a position created specifically for me based on my contacts in the veterans' affairs community. Seroka 
promised me better wages, better benefits, better working hours, a better working environment, and a better 
chance for career advancement . While I was reluctant at first because I loved my present job, Seroka 
persistently prodded and cajoled me, selling me on this new career until I eventually relented . Little did I know, 
the Councilman did not want a new staff member (one, it turns out, his office could barely afford) nor did he 
want a direct liaison to the veterans ' community (as he claimed to me and the public) , but what he really 
wanted was to be closer to me to control me. Seroka knew if he could get me under his charge, he would have 
more access to me, better access to me, and more control over me. Seroka also knew he could groom me, 
subtly each day. After I took the job , the Councilman began his grooming campaign not unlike a quintessential 



sexual harassment predator. Seroka found reasons to be alone with me at City Hall where he showered me with 
praise and compliments about my looks, my personality, my job performance, the way I carried herself, the way 
I interacted with others, even the way I dressed. Seroka also used these opportunities to try and touch me 
inappropriately . Seroka denigrated my husband to me, he denigrated his wife to me and he talked of his sexual 
failures with his wife. Seroka spoke of his loveless life, how he admired me and how I excited him. Seroka did 
everything a textbook sexual predator would do when grooming his victim . I never felt comfortable in any of 
these situations and resisted his advancements at every turn. I was (and am) happily married with two young 
children so I did not want to upset my life in any way, nor did I want to upset a job I loved or upset my career 
advancement. And I did not want to upset my boss. All the while, of course, Seroka remained my boss. When it 
came to public events, Seroka began staffing them with only me. Seroka would often tell his other senior staff 
assistants to stay home or "take the night off' but would insist I attend . Initially, I was oblivious that my inclusion 
in these events was pretext for the Councilman to get me alone, away from City Hall, where alcohol was 
present, so he could groom me more acutely . But I soon learned that the Councilman had designs to harass me. 
Seroka would again shower me with compliments, encourage me to consume alcohol, and tell me how great he 
will be for my career. Seroka would also tell me more intimately about his "loveless" marriage and how he 
wanted me to fill this void on the sly. At the same time, he spoke against my application to work for America's 
Warrior Partners outside of City Hall because Seroka knew it would limit his access to me and weaken his 
control over me. It was all very confusing for me as he subtly, steadily manipulated my thoughts and emotions . 
Then, at one point, the Councilman directly and explicitly tied my job security, career advancement, and 
standing in City Hall with my receptiveness to his advances. As treacherous as it was, and as insecure as Seroka 
made me, I resisted all of his advances. It was also well known to all at City Hall that Seroka treated me 
differently from my peers and co-workers, beginning with uncomfortable and unsolicited levels of affection and 
hugs which lead to rumors among my peers and co-workers that I was allegedly having an affair with Seroka. 
Seroka further subjected me to pervasive sexual language while at work and at times I was forced to listen to 
Seroka report on his pornographic proclivities and sexual desires. While at conferences and public events, I 
would also have to consistently decline Seroka's repeated sexual advances and invitations to "join him for 
dinner" or to a "attend a political event" because the topics of discussion were always extremely sexually 
charged and inappropriate . Seroka, however, would use information from my personal life as leverage to keep 
me from speaking out against his inappropriate behavior, while simultaneously sabotaging potential promotion 
opportunities because he was sexually attracted to me. Then Seroka invited me to a veterans' event in New 
York City taking place on November 8, 2018. I was leery of going with Seroka because of his previous confusing 
behavior towards me but he assured me that he was a professional, thought only of me as a fellow professional, 
that this event would expose me to good, powerful contacts in the veterans' affairs world, that I could not miss 
it, and that it would be a boon for my career. I also understood that the Councilman's wife would be 
accompanying them on the trip. So, based on those reassurances and facts, I agreed to go. I was excited for this 
potential advancement in my career. So, even when the Councilman's wife decided she could not attend, I was 
not concerned because of all of Seroka' s earlier assurances. But when we got to New York City, everything 
changed. Seroka had designed all along to isolate me all the way across country and to take advantage of his 
underling . The Councilman plied me with alcohol and then exploited me sexually. It was devastating to me. I felt 
violated, confused, depressed, insecure, panicked, and scared. I flew back to Las Vegas the next day. I did not 
know if I was going to lose her job, and when I confronted Seroka back in Las Vegas for reassurances that I 
would not lose my job, he berated and demeaned me. Seroka called me every horrible name a person could call 
a woman. Something Seroka did regularly, especially when he was drinking alcohol. Seroka's alcohol problems 
were well known to most folks working in City Hall. All of this understandably put me in an emotional and 
psychological tailspin. I was extremely traumatized. In the meantime, the Councilman knew he committed an 
egregious effort (if not a crime) and would reach out to me to alternatively seek my reassurance that I would 
not report him and to berate her further and blame me for all our troubles. Seroka was alternatively a saint to 
me and then a tyrant . I feared losing my job, I feared his power, I feared for my reputation in the industry, and I 
feared for my family. All of this was so overwhelming that lwas compelled to seek psychiatric and medical care. 
In fact, it got to a point that I was seeking medical treatment daily. And it was wearing on my personal life as a 
mother and wife. Seroka's horrendous mistreatment of me compelled my husband to call Seroka himself 
seeking an explanation of what Seroka did to me and what he intended to do to protect my job with as little 
continuing trauma as possible . The City has that recording as part of Ms. My Human Resources ("HR") 
Department complaint against the Councilman where Seroka makes multiple undeniable admissions of 
wrongdoing, and then scrambles to rectify the situation by punishing me. I was so confused by Seroka's sexual 
harassment inflicted upon that I did not know what to do in any part of my life, including my work life . Through 
professional psychiatric counseling, however, I was directed to report all of this to the City's HR Department, 
which I did bringing a fri_end al.911g for support , I was y_erv s~ared to ta~e thi~ step. I stalled and stoQ.ped it many 



times before I summoned the gumption to make the complaint . When I did so, I expressed to the City's HR 
personnel that I would only make my report if it was held in the strictest confidence . I was assured it would be 
by Chief of Staff, Ted Olivias, and others , and that the investigation would be quick and painless. So, I played the 
Seroka telephone recording, reported all of Seroka's bad acts against me, and sought relief from all stress by 
confiding in the City. But, shortly thereafter, I learned to my horror that the City did not keep my report 
confidential, that it leaked the report to many City employees, and leaked it to the local media . I was devastated 
all over again. I was astounded and my trauma was compounded and magnified . Soon the local media published 
and aired reports in a host of different mediums about me revealing every identifying feature about me ( e.g., 
~ob title, job descript ion, pictures of me with Seroka at the New York City event , etc.). There is no doubt that 
virtually every worker at City Hall and every newsperson in the city knows who I am. The media has also called 
me constantly, innumerable times a day, and still call me weekly. Because of the City Hall leaks, my family and I 
have had no peace from the media . It has been daily torment. The news reports have been detailed and specific 
with information that only could have come from inside the City. Whatever protective mechanism the City 
employed to prevent such an egregious leak did not work . Indeed, it failed dramatically. Even if the leak came 
from fellow councilperson , Michelle Fiore, the City is responsible for that. Based on the discriminatory conduct 
of the City, I was denied the opportunity for a safe, harmonious workplace, peace in a job I loved, and a 
continued ascending career path for my decision to decline the Councilman's sexual advances, and in retaliation 
for filing a complaint with HR seeking redress for such discrimination and sexual harassment. Eventually, all the 
stress from harassment, discrimination , constant threats of termination, and anxiety about the effect a 
potential loss of My income would have on my ability to help support my two children, caused me to develop 
severe physical ailments that lead to long term medical issues ultimately forcing me to take an extended stress
induced medical leave from my job . The physical strain arising from stress induced in medical issues eventually 
became so unbearable, that I was unable to return to work. The sexual harassment I endured is so extensive 
that I will not attempt to recite each and every incident, however during my tenure with the City I was subject 
to a persistent and pervasive culture of discrimination and harassment. Such pervasive culture of harassment 
can thus only have arisen "because of" discrimination on the basis of gender and sexual orientation . 
Accordingly, the City's violations of NRS §613.340 and 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. and Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act, create a high liability for awards of economic damages, punitive damages, and attorneys' fees. There is no 
question that over my career with the City, I engaged in legally protected conduct under Section 704(a) of Title 
VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e et seq. by filing a human resources complaint to address 
issues of discrimination on the basis of my sex, gender, and sexual orientation by ex-City Councilman Steve 
Seroka that I reasonably believed to be unlawful discrimination and harassment in my employment. However, in 
response to such protected conduct, the City and its agents not only failed to take any remedial action 
whatsoever, but actively retaliated against me by subjecting me to a hostile, intimidating, and offensive work 
env ironment, leaking my HR complaints against the Councilman to the public , and otherwise adversely altering 
the conditions of my employment in an effort to get me to quit. Even assuming the veracity of the City's 
position, it is clear that both the increased level of harassment following my complaints of discrimination, and 
the City's leak of my complaints to the public, all constitute adverse employment actions. 
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